
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA CRIMINAL NO.23-

DATE FILED: Julr 18.2023

KAMAL FATALIEV VIOLATIONS:
r8 U.S.C. $ 1001(a)(2) (false
statements to government
officials - 2 counts)

INDICTMENT

COUNT ONE

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

At all times material to this indictment:

1. The Federal Bureau oflnvestigation ("FBI") was conducting an

furtemational terrorism investigation.

2. During the investigation, the FBI developed evidence that, from January

30,2022 to February 20,2022, defendant KAMAL FATAIIEV posted over 200 files on an

intemet chat group ("Chat Group One"), known to the Grand Jury, and those files included

manuals related to weapons, guerilla warfare, and the manufacture and use ofexplosives and

toxins.

3. During the investigation, the FBI also developed evidence that defendant

KAMAL FATALIEV formed another intemet chat $oup (,,Chat Group Two,,), known to the

Grand Jury, that he communicated with others through chat Group Two, and that he shared

information, including a manual describing bomb making techniques, through chat Group Two

Case 2:23-cr-00308-HB   Document 1   Filed 07/18/23   Page 1 of 5



with another individual, Person One, known to the Grand Jury.

4. On May 26,2023, FBI special agents interviewed defendant KAMAL

FATALIEV during a search of his apartment. The agents wamed defendant FATALIEV that it is

a violation of federal law to lie to FBI special agents during the course ofan investigation.

During the interview that followed, defendant FATALIEV told the agents that he had formed

Chat Group Two as a private group, that he did not allow anyone else into Chat Group Two, that

every account in Chat Group Two belonged to him, ald that he did not share any information

with any other person through Chat Group Two.

5. On May 27,2023, defendant KAMAL FATALIEV called the FBI special

agents and asked to speak with them a second time. The agents met with defendant FATALIEV

and reminded him that it is a violation of federal law to lie to FBI speciai agents during the

course ofan investigation. During the interview that followed, defendant FATALIEV told the

agents that FATALIEV had not disseminated any manuals on Chat Group One. Defendant

FATALIEV also repeated his claim that he was the sole member of Chat Group Two.

6. On or about May 27,2023, in Philadelphia, in the Eastern District of

Pennsylvania, defendant

KAMAL FATALIEV,

in a matter within the jurisdiction ofthe Federal Bureau of Investigation, an agency ofthe

Executive Branch of the United States, knowingly and willfully made materially false, fictitious,

and fraudulent statements and representations, in that defendant FATALIEV falsely stated to the

FBI that he had never posted or shared materials in chat Group one, when in fact FATALIEV

then knew that, from January 30, 2022 to February 20,2022, he posted numerous files to chat

Group one, including manuals related to weapons, guerilla warfare, and the manufacture of
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explosives and toxins. The offense involved intemational terorism.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1001(aX2).
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COUNT TWO

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs I - 5 ofCount One are incorporated here.

2. On or about May 26,2023 and May 27,2023, in Philadelphia" in the Eastern

District of Pennsylvania, defendant

KAMAL FATALIEV,

in a matter within the jurisdiction of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, an agency of the

Executive Branch ofthe United States, knowingly and willfully made materially false, fictitious,

and fraudulent statements and representations, in that defendant FATAIIEV falsely stated to the

FBI that he created Chat Group Two so that he was the sole individual permitted in Chat Group

Two, that he never allowed anyone else into Chat Group Two, and that he never shared

information with anyone in Chat Group Two, when in fact FATALIEV then knew that he had

allowed other individuals to join Chat Group Two, and that he had communicated with Person

One and other individuals in Chat Group Two. The offense involved intemational terrorism.

In violation ofTitle 18, United States Code, Section 1001(a)(2).

JACQUELINE C. ROMERO
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

Q.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUIIT

Easlern District of Pennsylvania

Criminal Division
Filed Under Seal

THE UNITED STATES OII AMERICA

KAMAI, FA'IAT,IIlV

INI)IC'fMI]N'f

Counts
18 U.S.C. S 1001(a)(2) (false statements to govemment

officials - 2 counts)

I: ")
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA 

INDICTMENT 

DESIGNATION FORM to be used by counsel to indicate the category of the case for the 
purpose of assignment to appropriate calendar. 
Address of Plaintiff: 615 Chestnut Street, Suite 1250, Philadelphia, PA 19106-4476   

Post Office:    Philadelphia             County:     Philadelphia             

City and State of Defendant:    Philadelphia, Pennsylvania    

County:    Philadelphia     Register number:             

Place of accident, incident, or transaction:   Eastern District of Pennsylvania    

Post Office:  Philadelphia    County:      Philadelphia   
RELATED CASE, IF ANY: 

Criminal cases are deemed related when the answer to the following question is Ayes@. 

Does this case involve a defendant or defendants alleged to have participated in the same 
action or transaction, or in the same series of acts or transactions, constituting an offense 
or offenses? 

YES/NO: NO 

Case Number:   N/A Judge: N/A 
CRIMINAL: (Criminal Category - FOR USE BY U.S. ATTORNEY ONLY) 

1. Antitrust

2. Income Tax and other Tax Prosecutions

3. Commercial Mail Fraud

4. Controlled Substances

5. Violations of 18 U.S.C. Chapters 95 and 96 (Sections 1951-55 and 1961-68)
and Mail Fraud other than commercial

6. General Criminal
(U.S. ATTORNEY WILL PLEASE DESIGNATE PARTICULAR  CRIME AND
STATUTE CHARGED TO BE VIOLATED AND STATE ANY PREVIOUS
CRIMINAL NUMBER FOR SPEEDY TRIAL ACT TRACKING PURPOSES)

18 U.S.C.§ 1001(a)(2) 

DATE:    7/12/2023  /s/Joseph Labar 
Joseph Labar 
Assistant United States Attorney 

File No. 2022R00206 
U.S. v. Kamal Fataliev 
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